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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF KENTUCKY
CENTRAL DIVISION AT LEXINGTON

SHERLTON DIETERICH, on behalf of Case No.:

himself and all others similarly situated

)
)
o ; CIVIL COMPLAINT
Plaintiff )
; AND
)
)
)
)
)
)

Ve JURY TRIAL DEMAND

DAVID F. PRATT, ATTORNEY AT LAW

Defendant.

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff, Sherlton Dieterich, (hereinafter “Plaintiff), brings this Complaint by and through
his undersigned counsel against Defendant, David F. Pratt, Attorney at Law (hereinafter
“Defendant”) and alleges as follows:

JURISDICTION

1. This action arises out of violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15
U.S.C. §1692 et seq. (“FDCPA”) by Defendant.

2. Jurisdiction of this Court arises under 28 U.S.C. §1331 and pursuant to 15 U.S.C.
§1692k(d).

3. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(1) and (2) because
the acts and transactions occurred in this jurisdiction and because Defendant transacts business in
this jurisdiction.

PARTIES
4. Plaintiff is a natural person who resides in Lexington, Kentucky and is a

“consumer” as that term is defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(3).
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5. Defendant is a debt collection law firm that regularly collects or attempts to collect,
directly or indirectly, consumer debts owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another in this
state and judicial district with its principal place of business located at 155 East Main Street, Suite
215, Lexington, Kentucky 40507.

6. Defendant is a “debt collector” as the phrase is defined and used in the FDCPA
under 15 U.S.C. 81692a(6).

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

7. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered 1 through 6 herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length
herein.

8. Upon information and belief, on a date better known to Defendant, Baptist Health
Lexington assigned a consumer debt to Defendant for collection (“Alleged Debt™).

9. The Alleged Debt arose out of a transaction in which money, property, insurance
or services, which are the subject of the transaction, were primarily for personal, family or
household purposes and is therefore a “debt” as that term is defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(5).

10.  On or about April 4, 2017, Defendant sent a collection letter to Plaintiff in an
attempt to collect the Alleged Debt (“Collection Letter”), which is included herein as Exhibit “A”.

11.  The Collection Letter informs Plaintiff that Defendant has received Plaintiff’s
account from the original creditor and provides the alleged amount due.

12. The Collection Letter is the initial communication from Defendant to Plaintiff
regarding the debt.

13.  The Collection Letter provides in pertinent part that:

Unless you, the consumer within thirty (30) days after receipt of this notice,

dispute the validity of this debt, or any portion thereof, the debt will be
assumed valid.
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14.  Upon information and belief, Defendant mails hundreds of such collection letters
annually.

15.  Defendant’s Collection Letter fails to advise that only the debt collector may
assume the debt is valid in the absence of a dispute from a consumer.

16. In addition, Defendant’s Collection Letter advises “the hospital referenced in this
letter intends to commence a civil action against for you for the collection of your account if it is
not paid or if you have not applied for financial assistance within thirty (30) days of the date of
this letter.”

17.  As Plaintiff has thirty days from receipt of the collection letter, not the date of the
collection letter, Defendant’s Collection Letter improperly overshadows Plaintiff’s rights to
dispute the debt pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692g.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

18.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure (“FRCP”), on behalf of themselves and all persons/consumers who live in the
State of Kentucky, along with their successors-in-interest, who have received similar debt
collection notices/letters/communications from Defendant which, as alleged herein, are in
violation of the FDCPA, as of the date of Plaintiff” Complaint (“Class”). Excluded from the Class
is Defendant herein, and any person, firm, trust, corporation or other entity related to or affiliated
with Defendant, including, without limitation, persons who are officers, directors, employees,
associates or partners of Defendant as impracticable. On information and belief, hundreds of
persons, have received debt collection notices/letters/communications from Defendant, which

violate various provisions of the FDCPA.
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19.  This Class satisfies all the requirements of Rule 23 of the FRCP for maintaining a
class action.

20.  The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. On
information and belief, hundreds of persons have received debt collection
notices/letters/communications from Defendant that violate various provisions of the FDCPA.

21.  The debt collection notices/letters/communications from Defendant, received by
the Class, are to be evaluated by the objective standard of the hypothetical “least sophisticated
consumer.”

22.  There are questions of law and fact which are common to the Class and which
predominate over questions affecting any individual Class member. These common questions of
law and fact include, without limitation: (i) Whether Defendant violated various provisions of the
FDCPA; (i) Whether Plaintiff and the Class have been injured by Defendant’s conduct; (iii)
Whether Plaintiff and the Class have sustained damages and are entitled to restitution as a result
of Defendant’s wrongdoing and, if so, what is the proper measure and appropriate statutory
formula to be applied in determining such damages and restitution; and, (iv) Whether Plaintiff and
the Class are entitled to declaratory and/or injunctive relief.

23.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class, and Plaintiff has no interests
adverse or antagonistic to the interests of other members of the Class.

24.  Aclass action is superior to other methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of
the claims herein asserted, this being specifically envisioned by Congress as a principal means of
enforcing the FDCPA, as codified by 15 U.S.C. 81692(k).

25.  The members of the Class have claims that are unlikely to be vindicated in the

absence of a class action.
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26.  Prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would create
the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications resulting in the establishment of inconsistent or
varying standards for the parties.

27.  Aclass action will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute
their common claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently and without the duplication of
effort and expense that numerous individual actions would engender. Class treatment will also
permit the adjudication of relatively small claims by many Class members who could not otherwise
afford to seek legal redress for the wrongs complained of herein.

28.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the Class members’ interests in that
Plaintiff’s counsel is experienced and, further, anticipates no impediments in the pursuit and
maintenance of the class action as sought herein.

29. Defendant has acted, and will act, on grounds generally applicable to the entire
Class, thereby making appropriate a final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief
with respect to the Class as a whole.

COUNT |

VIOLATION OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
15 U.S.C. §16929(a)(3)

30.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered 1 through 29 herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length
herein.

31. Defendant’s Collection Letter failed to advise that only a debt collector is entitled
to assume the debt is valid in the absence of a dispute from a consumer.

32.  Defendant’s Collection Letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 81692g(a)(3) which
requires a statement that “unless the consumer, within thirty days, after receipt of the notice,

disputes the validity of the debt, or any portion thereof, the debt will be assumed to be valid by the
5
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debt collector.”

COUNT I
VIOLATION OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
15 U.S.C. 81692q(b)

33. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered 1 through 32 herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length
herein.

34.  Defendant’s Collection Letter overshadowed Plaintiff’s right to dispute by
threatening to file a lawsuit if payment was not received within 30 days of the date of the letter.

35.  Defendant’s Collection Letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692g(b) which
prohibits the use of collection activities and communications during the thirty day period that
overshadow or are inconsistent with the disclosure of the consumer’s right to dispute the debt or
request the name and address of the original creditor.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby respectfully requests a trial by jury for all claims and issues in his
Complaint to which they are or may be entitled to a jury trial.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demand judgment from the Defendant David F. Pratt, Attorney
at Law as follows:
A. Certification of the class pursuant to Rule 23(b)(3);
B. Statutory damages for the Plaintiff pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1692k;
C. Statutory damages for the class pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k;
D. For attorneys’ fees, costs and disbursements;
E. For an award of pre-judgment interest on all sums awarded and/or

collected;
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F. For any such other and further relief, as well as further costs, expenses and
disbursements of this action, as this Court may deem just and proper.
Dated: September 14, 2017
Respectfully submitted,

By: s/ Pamela S. Petas

Pamela S. Petas, Esq.

7439 Montgomery Road, Suite 3
Cincinnati, OH 45236

Phone: 513-328-0995

Fax: 513-813-2992

Email: ppetas@petaslaw.com

Co-Counsel to the Firm:

Law Offices of Michael Lupolover, P.C.
120 Sylvan Avenue, Suite 300
Englewood Cliffs, NJ 07632

Phone: 201-461-0059

Facsimile: 201-608-7116
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DAVID F. PRATT

attorney at law
155 East Main Street, Suite 215
Lexington, KY 40507

April 4,2017

Sherlton Dieterich
Lexington, KY 40505

DELINQUENT DEBT VERIFICATION NOTICE

Re:  Account(s) owed to Baptist Healthcare System, Inc. d/b/a Baptist Health
Lexington in the amount of $573.49

Dear Sherlton Dieterich:

The debt shown above has been referred to this law office for collection. Your account is
scheduled for disposition in thirty (30) days from the date of this letter. If you wish to register any
claims or disputes, or wish to voluntarily pay your obligations, you should do so during this period.
Please be advised that we are entitled to use all lawful means to collect this debt. 1f you wish to pay
in full or set up payment arrangements, please contact my office at the address above or at the phone
number or email address below.

Your account has been referred to my office by Baptist Healthcare System, Inc. which is a
medical provider that offers financial assistance to eligible patients. This is to advise you that the
hospital referenced in this letter intends to commence a civil action against you for the collection of
your account if it is not paid or if you have not applied for financial assistance within thirty (30) days
of the date of this letter. In the event that a civil action is commenced, it is the intent of the hospital
to authorize its attorney to seek a judgment against you and, subject to due process and the court’s
granting of a judgment against you, to invoke specific remedies for the recovery of your account.
These actions may include the garnishment of your wages in accordance with state and federal laws;
attachment of personal property such as checking and savings accounts; and, the filing of judgment
liens on rcal estate and real property that you may own. No action will be taken for a period of at
least thirty (30) days from the date of this lctter and nothing contained in this disclosure in any way
prohibits or alters your right to request validation of the debt or debts listed above in accordance with
Section 809 of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. To obtain information about the hospital’s
tinancial assistance program you may call:

Baptist Health Lexington

1740 Nicholasville Road

Lexington, KY40503

(859) 260-6600
www.baptisthealthkentucky.com/financial-aid.

EXHIBIT

—

Phone: (859) 254-1212 » Fax: (859) 243-9991
e-mail: davidpratlaw@yahoo.com

tabbies’
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Very truly yours,

David F. Pratt

DFP/cms

VALIDATION NOTICE: UNLESS YOU, THE CONSUMER, WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER
RECEIPT OF THIS NOTICE, DISPUTE THE VALIDITY OF THIS DEBT, OR ANY PORTION THEREOF,
THE DEBT WILL BE ASSUMED TO BE VALID. IF YOU NOTIFY US IN WRITING WITHIN THIRTY (30)
DAYS THAT THIS DEBT, OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, IS DISPUTED, WE WILL OBTAIN
VERIFICATION OF THE DEBT OR A COPY OF A JUDGMENT WILL BE MAILED TO YOU BY THIS
OFFICE. THAT UPON RECEIPT OF YOUR WRITTEN REQUEST WITHIN THE THIRTY (30) DAY
PERIOD, WE WILL PROVIDE YOU WITH THE CURRENT CREDITOR. THIS LETTER IS AN
ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT AND ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL BE USED FOR
THAT PURPOSE.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Eastern District of Kentucky

SHERLTON DIETERICH, on behalf of himself and
all others similarly situated
Plaintiff(s)
V. Civil Action No.

DAVID F. PRATT, ATTORNEY AT LAW
Defendant(s)

N e N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
David F. Pratt, Attorney at Law
155 East Main Street, Suite 215
Lexington, KY 40507

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

Pamela S. Petas, Esq.
7439 Montgomery Road, Suite 3
Cincinnati, OH 45236

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

Date:

[] I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

[] Ileft the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

[ ] 1 served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) , or
[ ] I returned the summons unexecuted because por
[] Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $

| declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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